HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 30, 2001
1: 43 PM

TAPE HFC 01 — 68, Side A
TAPE HFC 01 - 68, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:43 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative El don Mul der, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representati ve John Davi es
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Hudson
Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative John Harris
Representative Ji m Wit aker

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Brian Porter; Dean CGuaneli, Chief Assistant
Attorney General, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law, Doug
Wholiver, Admnistrative Attorney, Alaska Court System
Loren Jones, Conmmunity Mental Heal th/ APl Repl acenent Project
Director, Departnent of Health and Social Services.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Janet M Cabe, Partners for Downt own  Progress; Kac' e
McDowel |, Cabaret Hotel and Restaurant Retail Association;
Blair MCune, Deputy Director, Alaska Public Defenders
Agency.

SUMVARY

HB 172 "An Act relating to therapeutic courts for
of fenders and to the authorized nunber of superior
court judges."
HB 172 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb172

House Fi nance Committee 1 03/30/01 1:43 PM



HOUSE BILL NO. 172

"An Act relating to therapeutic courts for offenders
and to the authorized nunber of superior court judges."

REPRESENTATI VE BRI AN PORTER, SPONSOR spoke in support of HB
172. The legislation ains, through a specialized court and a
specialized process, to deal with the npbst dangerous of
al cohol cases: DW's and specifically multiple DW
of fenders. The Legislature recognizing the seriousness of
the offense has balanced crines wth treatnent and jails.
Four of five first tinme offenders do not re-offend. Serious
sanctions for first tinme offenses are successful as
deterrents. The bill is aimed at the one of five that does
re-of fend. Seventy-five percent of those arrested on felony
DW's re-offend. The thesis of the legislation is that the
m ssing ingredient is the acknow edgnent that treatnent is
necessary to change an addiction behavior. He noted that
recent alcohol related traffic fatalities have focused the
fact that a treatnent approach is necessary. Therapeutic
court has been successful in Anchorage at the district court
| evel . He pointed out that an additional pharmaceutica

approach is now available to counter addictive behavior. He
acknowl edged that the legislation has significant fiscal

notes attached, but enphasized that a serious problem needs
serious resources.

Vice-Chair Bunde questioned if the program exists in
Anchorage. Representative Porter noted that there is a
Wllness Court in the District Court that deals wth
mul tiple offenders and sone felonies. The |egislation would
direct the therapeutic court at felonies and would reside in
the Superior Court. There is also a drug court in the
Superior Court that is ained at narcotics and dangerous drug
of fenders. The Anchorage court is funded through a federa

grant.

Representative John Davies expressed support for the
| egi slation and questioned if it is a pilot program and if
it would be available in other places in the state in the
future.

Representative Porter responded that the legislation would
establish a court in Anchorage. A court would be established
in Bethel after six nonths. The delay is designed to all ow
Bethel to benefit from the establishnment of the Anchorage
court and give tinme to involve the |ocal community.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde noted that there is a 75 percent recidivism
rate anong felony offenders. He asked if the therapeutic
courts reduce the recidivismrate. Representative Porter did
not have statistics, but enphasized that studies have shown
them to be successful in reducing the recidivism rate of
t hose treated.

House Fi nance Committee 2 03/30/01 1:43 PM



Representative Lancaster questioned if there would be future
eval uations on the program Representative Porter noted that
there is a provision to evaluate the success of the program

Representative Hudson noted that the fiscal cost is $2
mllion general fund dollars and questioned if participants
would be required to partially pay. Representative Porter
affirmed that participants would share in the cost. He
observed that the program would allow participants to stay
out of jail and remain working. The goal of the |egislation
is to not only pay for the cost treatnent, but to also setup
a program to conpensate victins for the original offense
The defense, prosecution and court would evaluate each DW
offender. Al parties have to agree to participation in the
program The participating defendants would plead guilty.
The court would then suspend sentencing until the end of the
treatment program The legislation currently includes
tinelines from arrest to sentencing. He observed that the
tinelines restrict the courts flexibility and noted that he
woul d of fer an anmendnent to delete them

Representative Lancaster questioned if “drug” 1is broad
enough to enconpass prescription drugs. Representative
Porter thought that prescription drugs would be covered. He
enphasi zed that he did not want to limt the inclusion of
drugs.

Representative John Davies spoke to the fiscal inpact. He
asked if there would be reductions in other places in the
budget to conpensate for the fiscal notes. Representative
Porter noted that it would be nore appropriate for the
agencies to respond to the question.

DOUG WOOLI VER, ADM NI STRATI VE ATTORNEY, ALASKA COURT SYSTEM
spoke in support of the legislation. He noted that a felony
Drug Court in Anchorage, supported by federal grants, would
begin operations in a nonth. A Mntal Health Court has
operated for the last two years. The Wl |l ness Court is ained
at muni ci pal al cohol abusers, especially m sdeneanor
mul tiple DW offenders. The Wellness Court is successful but
suffers fromthe fact that it operates through the will of a
single judge. He stressed that therapeutic courts, which
utilize naltrexone are very successful. He enphasized the
need for studies. The Alaska Court System fiscal note calls
for two new Superior Court Justices. The legislation focus
on felony DW's which are heard in Superior Court. The
Superior Court already has nore cases than it can hear.
Therapeutic courts take nore effort per def endant .
Def endants return to the court for nultiple hearings. The
increase in workload triggers the need for an extra judge in
Anchorage. The felony caseload has doubled since the |ast
superior court judge was added in 1985.

House Fi nance Committee 3 03/30/01 1:43 PM



M. Wooliver discussed the need for a superior court judge
in Bethel. The Bethel court has tw ce the workload as other
areas. A new district court judge was funded in the previous
fiscal year. The legislation would turn this position into a
superior court judge. The fiscal note reflects the
di fference.

Co-Chair WIllians referred to suspended sentencing. M.
Wholiver explained that when the court, prosecution and
defense agree that a person is a candidate for the program
the candi date woul d plead guilty. Defendants are apprised of
the sentencing benefit from their participation in the
program |If the candidate is successful in conpleting the
program they would receive the agreed upon reduction in
sentencing. |If they drop out of the program the judge woul d
sentence them under whatever terns are appropriate at that
tinme. He acknow edged that relapses occur. The program
generally lasts a year or nore. The |egislation anticipates
80 participants a year in Anchorage. The Bethel program
anticipates serving 15 people in the first half-year and 45
per year in the following full year.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde questioned if the new judges would have
duties in addition to their work wth the therapeutic court.

M. Wholiver affirmed that judges would have other duties.
He explained that other felony DW cases, which are being
handled in District Court, would be transferred to the
Superior Court where they belong. The additional |judges
woul d also handle increases in workload, which would be
generated by the passage of HB 4. The Al aska Court System
cannot do nore wi thout an additional judge, however, once a
judge is added nmore can be done. Additional court
proceedi ngs woul d of fset reductions in recidivism The exact
anount of savings i s unknown.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde stressed the benefit of keeping people off
the road and enphasized that if the fiscal cost s
conparabl e that the programwould be a win/win situation

In response to a question by Representative Hudson, M.
Whol i ver noted that there are an average of 100 DW fel oni es
a year in Anchorage. The nunber could increase if
| egi sl ati on before the Legislature is adopted.

LOREN JONES, COWMUNI TY MENTAL HEALTH API REPLACEMENT PRQIECT
DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES testified
in support of the legislation. He noted that the departnent
has submitted an additional $55 thousand dollar fiscal note
in response to an amendnent in the House Judiciary
Comm ttee. The anendnent added a responsibility to establish
infrastructure to support advancenents to defendants for the
cost of treatnent.

House Fi nance Committee 4 03/30/01 1:43 PM



M. Jones observed that 56 percent of the individuals in out
patient treatnent were abstinent for a year; 47 percent of
residential patients were abstinent after a year. He pointed
out that residential patients have a higher Ilevel of
inpairnment. Those that received the greatest nunber of
contact hours in treatnent did better than the group as a
whol e. An i ndependent group conducted the study on rural and
urban areas for out patients and residential patients
several years ago. The fiscal note does not anticipate the
use of residential treatnment. The Division would provide
grant funds to local nonprofit organizations in Anchorage
and Bethel. The fiscal note would assure that treatnent is
i mredi ately avail able. There are wait |ists for services in
Anchorage and Fairbanks. Treatnent nust be immediately
avai l able when they enter the therapeutic court. He noted
that up to 10 hours of direct services a week are received
in the first 6 — 8 weeks. By the end of the program they
receive services once a nonth. They wuld also get
nal trexone services if appropriate. The judge woul d check on
progress and receive reports from counsel ors.

Co-Chair WIllians questioned if +the grants would be
avail abl e each year. M. Jones noted that the departnent's
fiscal note for grants is $501 thousand dollars: $409
t housand dollars for Anchorage and $92 thousand dollars for
Bethel during the first year. The second year cost in Bethel
woul d be $276 thousand dollars. This is 75 percent of the
total costs; defendants are expected to pay at |east 25
percent of the cost in Anchorage and 10 percent in Bethel.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde questioned how naltrexone affects people.
M. Jones expl ained that naltrexone is an al cohol antagoni st
that reduces the <cravings to take the first drink
Nal t rexone does not mnake people sick. The only counter
indication is severe liver disease. Chronic alcoholics that
take naltrexone tend to stay in treatnent |onger and report
significant reductions in cravings. It is an expensive drug.

Co-Chair Miulder referred to the pool of eligibility. He
noted that the legislation states that the court may accept
a defendant that is not charged with an uncl assified felony,
a class A felony, or an offense under AS 11.41.410 -
11.41.470 and w Il focus on defendants charged with nmultiple
driving while intoxicated offenses.

M. Jones observed that there are 100 felony DW offenders
in Anchorage. There are defendants with nultiple offenses
that could still be m sdeneanors due to the |ength between
of fenses. The decision was made to |imt the court to 80 in
Anchorage, 15 for the first half-year in Bethel and 45 in
Bethel the next full year. The pool of people that could
self-select would be larger. The Division's fiscal note is
$400 thousand dollars. The court would be established for a
t hree-year peri od.

House Fi nance Committee 5 03/30/01 1:43 PM



Co-Chair Mulder noted that there would be an annual $2
mllion dollar fiscal note. Representative Croft observed
that the fiscal cost in the year 2003 would be $2.5 mllion
dollars (the <cost per defendant would be $20,000). He
stressed that 100 people in jail would cost $2.5 mllion
dollars. If 100 people were kept out of prison the fiscal
cost woul d be even. He pointed out that 75 percent of felony
DW offenders re-offend. He suggested that the recidivism
rate would be lowered from75 to 50. He stressed that there
woul d be collateral benefits fromreducing DW offences.

TAPE HFC 01 - 68, Side B

M. Jones explained that after arrest a person enters the

court. If they are found guilty the court places felony
offenders in jail. M sdeneanor offenders may be placed in
jail or referred to alcohol safety action prograns for

assessnent and treatnent. Treatnent providers try to engage
the person. In therapeutic courts the judge, prosecutor,

public defender, probation officer and the treatnent
counsel or cone together as a team The team puts nore focus
on the individual in order to keep themout of jail, prevent

them from driving while intoxicated and encourage sobriety
and long-term recovery so that they can be productive and
not repeat their offense. The |egislation provides funding
specifically for repeat offenders, which desperately need to
be targeted, w thout inpacting scarce resources, for which
there are wait lists. The ultimate goal is to stop the
behavi or and reduce deaths from drunk drivers.

Representati ve Hudson agreed that it is not just a natter of
reduci ng expenses. He enphasized the value of prevention
vVersus incarceration

DEAN GUANELI, CHI EF ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, CRI' M NAL
DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF LAW spoke in support of the
| egi slation. He noted that the Legislature s attention over
the last 7 years has focused on increasing jail sentencing
for alcohol related offenses. He questioned if |[|onger
sentencing is working. He acknow edged that defendants are
not driving while in jail, but noted that recidivismrates
are high. He stressed that the therapeutic court program
seens to be working and is worth a try. The pilot program
allows judges flexibility. Suspension of sentencing provides
an incentive. He naintained that the program should be done
on a limted and controlled basis to see if it works. There
is a requirenent for a followup evaluation. The depart nent
feels that the |legislation contains sufficient safe guards.

M. Guaneli acknow edged the fiscal cost, but stressed that
the cost of incarceration is also expensive. He observed
that the average tine served by repeat DW offenders is 9 —
10 nonths. Third tinme offenses receive 6 - 8 nonths. Fourth

House Fi nance Committee 6 03/30/01 1:43 PM



time offenders receive 10 - 13 and 5th tinme offenders
receive up to 18 nonths. There is a popul ation of hard-core
drinkers that are difficult to crack. He acknow edged that
there would be relapses. He stressed that there are
econom es of scale. He thought that in conparison to the
cost of incarceration the programwoul d break even

Co-Chair Ml der questioned if the nunber of potential
applicants is accurate. M. Quanel i noted that the
uncl assified felony, class A offenses and sex offenders that
are being excluded make a relatively small percentage of the
felony offenders. There are approximtely 100 cases a year
in Anchorage. In Bethel, sone drug-addicted offenders woul d
al so benefit. There are over 1,000 cases of serious offenses
as the result of alcohol that could benefit froma simlar
program

Co-Chair Mulder questioned if the assunption is that 80
cases would plead guilty to take advantage of the program
M. Guaneli stressed that there are sufficient incentives to
encourage people to enter the program The target of 80 was
chosen to limt the program

Co-Chair Muil der questioned the neasurenent of success and
asked what is being used as a baseline conparison. He
mai ntai ned that without a baseline the departnent is going
to come back and claim that the program was an unqualified
success. M. @Guaneli noted that the rate of success is based
on recidivism M. Jones noted that the Al aska Judicial
Council woul d eval uate the program

Co-Chair Mulder recommended a letter of intent, to outline
baseline criteria.

Representative Croft observed that the recidivism rate and
sobriety over consecutive periods such as 6 nonths and a
year woul d be a baseline.

M. Guaneli spoke in support of a long-term followup and
acknow edged the need for baseline information.

Representative John Davies noted that page 3, line 19 calls
for <collection of data about and evaluation of the
effectiveness of the programand nmaintained that a letter of
intent to clarify would be out of order. He stressed that
the baseline needs to be the total popul ation.

Representative Foster noted that jail is not a deterrent. He
felt that the program woul d be beneficial.

JANET MCCABE, PARTNERS FOR DOWNTOM PROGRESS testified via
tel econference in support of the legislation. Partners for
Downtown Progress is the local nonprofit organization that
wor ked with Judge Wanamaker to devel oped and inplenent the

House Fi nance Committee 7 03/30/01 1:43 PM



Wel | ness Court. Federal funding supports treatnent and case
coordination. She pointed to the success of the Wl ness
Court. She spoke in support of allowng flexible tinelines.
She noted that the Wellness Court is funded by a one-tine
federal grant that wll be depleted January 1, 2002. She
spoke in support of continuing the District Court program
The majority of DW cases are on the nunicipal level in
Anchorage. She stated that they have |anguage that they
would like to recoormend for the criteria of selection. She
observed that defendants have nom nated thenselves after
seeing video footage on naltrexone. She stressed the need to
choose persons that are going to succeed. She observed that
the pilot prograns would be in accordance with a nmutually
agreed-upon plan. She suggested that there be a |eader and
recormmended that “under the |eadership of the therapeutic
court judges” be added. She reiterated that funding for the
Vel | ness Court woul d end.

Representative John Davies asked the anobunt of the federa
grant for the Wellness Court. Ms. MCabe responded that the
federal grant is $150 thousand dollars. Treatnent for 40
peopl e was covered with the grant. The goal is to get the
defendant started. The program pays for the first nonth or 2
of naltrexone, and funds a case coordinator hired by the
municipality to work wwth the defendants and help identify
candidates. There is also a comunity [iaison. The
adm nistration of the programis on a volunteer basis.

Representative John Davies questioned if the clientele of
the Wellness Court is different from the clientele that
woul d be served by the legislation. Ms. MCabe noted that
the Wllness Court serves nmunicipal cases that are
predom nat el y m sdeneanants.

Representative John Davies asked if it is the sanme form of
treatnent and how often they are back before the court. M.
McCabe noted that clients are brought back to court once a
nonth and sent back to jail if they have relapsed. Qut
patient treatnent is used. Naltrexone 1is also used.
O fenders are supervised for a year to 18 nonths.

BLAIR MCCUNE, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, ALASKA PUBLIC DEFENDERS
AGENCY testified via teleconference in support of the
| egislation. He noted that the Alaska Public Defenders
Agency's inability to follow up on their clients. They
participate with Anchorage in the Mental Health court, which
has been successful. He acknow edged that the Mental Health
Court is nore resource intensive, but enphasized their
success rate. He spoke in support of allowing credit for
time served.

Co-Chair Milder noted that a defendant referred to a court

shall enter a plea of guilty or no contest within 45 days
after the defendant's first appearance before the

House Fi nance Committee 8 03/30/01 1:43 PM



therapeutic court. Representative Porter interjected that he
woul d not propose an anmendnent to address this section.

Co-Chair Ml der questioned the need for 5 nore public
defenders if the clients are pleading quilty. M. MCune
noted that the success of the court is based on a team
approach. He observed that defendants w Il discuss things
wth the public defenders under attorney/client privileges
and enphasi zed that the defense attorney has a strong role
to play in assisting counselors and determning the
direction of treatnment. He observed that there would be an
added superior court judge. It takes four |lawers to handl e
the work before each superior court judge. Cases before the
therapeutic courts require additional work and take nore
time than other cases. He felt that he fiscal note was
justified.

Representative Porter pointed out that there would be a
di m ni shnent of the superior court judge's activity since he
would be involved with therapeutic courts, which require
nore time per case. He maintained that there would not be
additional DW arrests as the result of the legislation. If
anyt hing there would be |ess.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde noted that the superior court judges would
not be 100 percent focused on therapeutic court cases. He
questioned if the public defenders added would be also
wor king on other cases. M. MCune acknow edged that the
addi tional public defenders would also be working on other
cases.

HB 172 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:45 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 9 03/30/01 1:43 PM



